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RFP NO. NV-HIE-01 QUESTION AND RESPONSES  

 

The table below includes the contractor question and responses for the RFP No NV-HIE-01. 

  
Question 
# 

Question RFP Reference Response 

1.  Will NV-HIE provide an extension, given 
the delay in the down-select decision? 

 

None Pursuant to the NV-HIE contract with DHHS, NV-HIE 
cannot extend the proposal due date. 

2.  Will the extension include a total 
equivalent to each day the decision was 
delayed (including Saturday and Sunday)?  

 

None Pursuant to the NV-HIE contract with DHHS, NV-HIE 
cannot extend the proposal due date. 

3.  Will the extension extend to the RFP, 
Product Demonstration, and Oral 
Presentation? 

None Pursuant to the NV-HIE contract with DHHS , NV-HIE 
cannot extend the proposal due date.  The oral presentation 
and product demonstration has already been scheduled with 
the Board of Directors for August 2, 2013. 

4.  Will NV-HIE provide an extension for the 
Product Demonstration and Oral 
Presentation (possibly moving it to the 
week beginning Monday, 5 August)? 

None The oral presentation and product demonstration has already 
been scheduled with the NV-HIE Board of Directors for 
August 2, 2013. 

5.  Will there be any additional changes to the 
NV-HIE Proposal Evaluation and 
Contract Award Timeline? 

None No additional changes are anticipated. 

6.  Please identify the amount of time 
available for the oral presentation and 
product demonstration.  

Page 26 / 
Section 5.4.5. /  

Product 
Demonstration 

1.5 hours will be allocated to the oral presentation and 
product demonstration. 



3 

and Oral 
Presentation 

7.  How many participants from NV-HIE will 
attend? 

Page 26 / 
Section 5.4.5. /  

Product 
Demonstration 
and Oral 
Presentation 

The evaluation panel consists of NV-HIE staff, as well as 
state and private sector Subject Matter Experts (SME’s).  In 
addition, the NV-HIE Board of Directors will be invited.  
Since NV-HIE is required to comply with Nevada Open 
Meeting Law, and it will be a public meeting. 

8.  How many participants from the 
contractor team may attend? 

Page 26 / 
Section 5.4.5. /  

Product 
Demonstration 
and Oral 
Presentation 

Key Contractor personnel should attend, especially those 
Contractor resources who would be assigned to the NV-HIE 
client for support.  Any other individuals the contractor feels 
are important to the project should attend.  In addition, 
subcontractors are encouraged to attend.  Due to Nevada 
Open Meeting Law, anyone from the public can attend in 
person at the Reno location.  There will be no 
videoconference or teleconference options. 

9.  Will all attendees be in the room? Page 26 / 
Section 5.4.5. /  

Product 
Demonstration 
and Oral 
Presentation 

A conference line will not be used to conduct the meeting 
and will not be available for the contractor.  All attendees will 
be in the room. 

10.  What connections and equipment are 
available to the contractor? 

Page 26 / 
Section 5.4.5. /  

Product 
Demonstration 
and Oral 
Presentation 

The contractor shall provide all Audio/Visual (AV) and 
technology equipment for their demonstration.  A display 
screen and seating area will be available.  The contractor shall 
provide wireless Internet access for any Internet needs.    

11.  At what time will the contractor be given Page 26 / The contractor shall have 30 minutes for set-up immediately 
prior to the presentation. 
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access for set-up? Section 5.4.5. /  

Product 
Demonstration 
and Oral 
Presentation 

12.  Will NV-HIE provide additional details 
and instructions for the presentation and 
for the demonstration? 

Page 26 / 
Section 5.4.5. /  

Product 
Demonstration 
and Oral 
Presentation 

Yes, an agenda with detailed instructions will be provided at 
least one week prior to the demonstration date. 

13.  How much time will be allocated for the 
Demonstration?   

Page 26 / 
Section 5.4.5. /  

Product 
Demonstration 
and Oral 
Presentation 

1.5 hours total.  This includes: 
45 Minutes for the Contractor to follow a pre-scripted HIE 
System Demonstration and 
45 minutes for follow-up questions from the Evaluators.  

14.  In addition to the stakeholders listed in 
Section 3.2, who are the other current and 
targeted stakeholders for the NV-HIE?   

 

Page 17 / 
Section 3.2 

Targeted candidates are all healthcare providers, hospitals, 
pharmacies, pharmacies, radiologists, laboratory, State and 
local government agencies and other ancillary healthcare 
providers within Nevada and other surrounding states. 

15.  Can NV-HIE provide a comprehensive list 
of current and targeted stakeholders? 

Page 17 / 
Section 3.2 

The list is already included in the RFP Section 3.2.  In 
addition, please refer to Nevada’s State HIT Strategic and 
Operational Plan. 

16.  Who are the qualified Participants that 
NV-HIE have reached out to, and which 
ones are a priority for NV-HIE? 

Page 17 / 
Section 3.2 

Refer to response #14. 

17.  Who are the Providers you are targeting? Page 17 / Refer to response #14. 
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Section 3.2 

18.  Have any formal commitments for 
participation been made by stakeholders, 
either in the form of LOI/MOU or 
funding commitments? 

Page 17 / 
Section 3.2 

Not as of today’s date. 

19.  What does the stakeholder mix look like 
for NV-HIE?  Specifically, what 
Payers/Health Plans are engaged? 

 

Page 17 / 
Section 3.2 

Please refer to Nevada’s State HIT Strategic and Operational 
Plan for stakeholder mix.  No agreements have been signed 
as of today’s date. 
 

20.  What are your proposed metrics for 
participation success, based on the current 
provider landscape and HIT initiatives 
described in Section 3.3? [Note: This was 
discussed in the Board meeting, on July 2, 
2013.] 

Page 19 / 
Section 3.3 

NV-HIE will work with the Contractor to define metrics for 
success. 

21.  Can you provide confirmation or 
clarification on the "total" number of 
Providers that will access the 
system.  Provider as defined by any health 
care provider with a billing ID (e.g. a 
unique Medicare/Medicaid billing ID)? 
 

General Any provider with a provider ID is a potential client – see 
response above to #15.  No agreements have been signed to-
date. 

22.  Can you please provide the total number 
of hospital beds that will encompass the 
entire state of Nevada? 

General There are approximately 6,750 licensed hospital beds 
statewide. 

23.  Can you please provide the total 
population of Nevada (we estimate 2.8M 
lives)? 

 

General As of 2012, the Nevada State Demographer estimates that 
the Nevada population was approximately 2.75 million. 
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24.  What is the page limit (if any) for 18.8 
Qualifications of Firm? 

 

Page 57 / 
Section 18.8 

A page limit is not required for Qualifications of Firm. 

25.  What is the page limit (if any) for 17.0 
Service Level Agreement? 

Pages 53-54 / 
Section 17.0 

A page limit is not required for the Service Level Agreement. 

26.  Please further define what is meant by 
“value-add.”  

 

Page 14 / 
Section 2.2.13 

 

Value-add refers to HIT/HIE system solution capabilities, 
functions, features and/or contractor services that are not 
specifically required, but may provide enhanced benefits to 
the contract overtime. 
 

27.  Should our value-added services be 
presented in a separate section in our 
Technical Proposal and should they be 
presented in our Cost Proposal?   

Page 14 / 
Section 2.2.13 

 

Value-add should be addressed as part of the optional 
requirements section of the Technical Proposal and may also 
be included in the Cost Proposal, Schedule F, if there are 
specific costs associated with the value-added services.  
Contractor should estimate costs for optional services, 
functions, and features. 

28.  Is there a page-limit for the information 
we provide regarding our value-add 
services?  

Page 14 / 
Section 2.2.13 

 

There is not a page limit for this section, but contractors shall 
concisely describe their value-add services, functions, and 
features 

29.  Example of “value-add” in the RFP. 

Business Development Support The HIE 
Contractor will collaborate with NV-HIE 
to provide technical sales support (e.g., 
demonstration assistance and 
demonstration environment) during the 
early stages of business launch as well as 
during market entry of new value-add 
services that the HIE Contractor is 
supporting. 

Page 14 / 
Section 2.2.13 

Page 13 / 
Section 2.2.8 

 

 

Examples may include: 
1. Imaging exchange 
2. Making data more useful to clinicians 
3. Personal Health Record, 
4. Business intelligence 
5. Decision-support 
6. Cancer Registry 
7. Data Analytics 
8. Data Repository/Warehouse and reporting 
9. Advance Directive storage and retrieval 
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Value-added HIE services will be 
incorporated into the NV-HIE product 
portfolio over time and as market demand 
warrants. HIE Contractors are encouraged 
to propose and recommend value-added 
services. 

 

10. Chronic Disease Program data storage, management, 
retrieval 

11. Collection of Admissions/Discharge/Transfer data and 
notifications to Primary Care Teams, hospitals, 
clinicians., etc. 

30.  In 18.9.10.1., the RFP states; “The Offeror 
may describe other optional requirements, 
such as those shown below. Optional 
requirements will not be evaluated, but 
may be included by the Contractor as 
value-add.”  In Table 19.1.5 - Proposal 
Evaluation Point Summary, the RFP 
indicates that a maximum number of 25 
points will be awarded for Value-Add. 
How is the term “Value-Add” being used 
as an evaluation factor, versus how is the 
term being used in Section 2.2.8, 2.2.13, 
and 18.9.10.1? 

Page 65 / 
19.1.5. / Table 
19.1.5 

Value-Add in relation to the evaluation, as shown in Table 
19.1.5, relates to the enhanced benefits, efficiencies, and 
overall value the contractor brings to the contract.  This is 
simply a term that is used for evaluation for contractor 
differentiations in the marketplace.  This does not have the 
same meaning as “value-add” in relation to RFP Section 
2.2.13. 
 

31.  HIE states that the not-to-exceed budget 
for the contract is $2,316,545 for the initial 
contract base of 3 years.   

What is the basis for this ceiling price?  

 

Page 63 / 
Section:  
18.12.1.1 

 

This is the existing NV-HIE Operational budget that has 
been approved by the NV-HIE Board of Directors in 
accordance to the Federal and State Grant requirements. 

32.  How was the $2.3M budget for the core 
system derived/developed? Was an 
independent estimate obtained?  If so, will 
bidders be allowed to have access to this 

Page 63 / 
Section:  
18.12.1.1 

 

This is the existing Operational budget that has been 
approved by the Board of Directors in accordance to the 
Federal and State Grant requirements. 
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estimate? 

33.  Can NV-HIE provide the detailed budget 
that was discussed and approved in the 
January Board Meeting? 

General / 
Budget 

Bidders shall provide a cost proposal driven by the scope of 
work. 
 
Please refer to http://dhhs.nv.gov/Hit.htm for January 
Board Meeting Minutes. 

34.  Does NV-HIE have an estimate or 
projection for the total $ amount will be 
allocated for future task orders? 

General / 
Budget 

NV-HIE is developing an operational budget for after the 
second quarter 2014. 
 
Please note that integration of Qualified Participants using 
the work order process is encompassed in the base contract. 
 

35.  Would NV-HIE consider collocating the 
datacenter to reduce costs? 

 

Appendix D / 
Pages 106 - 114 

Collocating the datacenter is not an option for this solution. 

36.  Would NV-HIE consider hosting the 
solution at a State datacenter according to 
specifications provided by the Vendor? 

Appendix D / 
Pages 106 - 114 

Hosting this solution at the State datacenter is not an option 
for this solution. 

37.  Please clearly define what you mean by 
Tier 1 and Tier 2 services, roles and 
responsibilities.  

Page 12 / 
Section 2.2.7.1 

The tiered approach to the service desk is based on an ITIL 
version 4 model.  The Contractor will collaborate with NV-
HIE to define specific roles and responsibilities using this 
tiered approach.  

38.  Please clarify what you mean by Tier 2 
support?  What support is anticipated to 
being transitioned back to NV-HIE? 

Page 12 / 
Section 2.2.7.1 

The tiered approach to the service desk is based on an ITIL 
version 4 model.  The Contractor will collaborate with NV-
HIE to define specific roles and responsibilities using this 
tiered approach. 

39.  Per RFP instructions; “Pages should be 
numbered clearly and consecutively to 
reflect the total number of pages in the 
proposal.”  For clarity and compliance 

Page 55 / 
Section 
18.1.2.5. 

Yes, numbers can be broken out per section.  Specific 
sections, including appendices, can have a separate page 
count. 

http://dhhs.nv.gov/Hit.htm
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verification, could page numbering be 
broken out per section?  Could specific 
sections have a separate page count (i.e. 
Executive Summary pages 1- 3, Approach 
to Work pages 1-120, Qualifications of 
Proposed Key Personnel. pages 1-15, and 
so forth)?  Could each Appendix have a 
separate page count (i.e. Appendix A pages 
1-56, Appendix B pages 1-5)?  This would 
aid in ascertaining page compliance per 
section.  Or, must the numbering be for 
the entire Technical Proposal, including all 
appendices? 

 

 

40.  What hospitals are NV-HIE targeting as 
participants, and when does NV-HIE 
expect these hospitals to sign agreements? 

 

General All hospitals and healthcare facilities are targeted for 
integration.  No agreements have been signed as of today’s 
date. 

41.  Who are the targeted qualified 
participants? What is anticipated volume 
over time? And, what is the timing that 
implementation might be expected? 

General Refer to response #14. 

42.  What is your Sustainability Plan? General The Sustainability Plan is currently in draft form and being 
reviewed by NV-HIE staff.   The current plan is to have it 
developed and approved within the next quarter (Q4 2013).  
The Contractor shall collaborate with NV-HIE to develop 
the final NV-HIE Sustainability Plan. 

43.  How will NV-HIE finance the HIE? General See response to #42. 
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44.  What will be NV-HIE’s revenue source, 
after Federal funding expires? 

General See response to #42. 

45.  HIE has provided Price Schedules to 
capture the costs for the Contract 
Elements outlined in Sections 8 – 15 of 
the RFP.  Some of those elements are not 
easily mapped to the Schedules provided.   

What Pricing Schedule should be used to 
capture costs associated with the following 
Contract Elements: 

1. Adm. Reporting, Operations & 
Maintenance Support 

2. Business Development Support 
3. Outreach Services and 

Promotional Materials 

Pages 149-154 

Section:  
Appendix M – 
Cost Sheets 

 

Costs associated with these contract elements should be 
incorporated into the other pricing schedules.  For example, 
business development could be factored into the System 
Implementation and Configuration costs.  In addition, 
operational and maintenance costs can be included in the 
monthly software as a service cost. 

46.  Please provide a reference as to what is 
meant by “State Agency Gateway Services 
that are certified and meet agreed 
integration standards?” 

What is acceptable certification, as 
required by NV-HIE? 

Page 74  // 
Section 8 // 
Item 14 

This refers to state gateway services that meet relevant 
Federal agency requirements, such as CDC and CMS. 
 
Acceptable “authentication” (not specifically certification) 
would be based on the contractor’s process to allow users to 
use the system. 

47.  Some requirements are listed as being a 
priority; but also as being optional.  For 
example: 8.2.2. through 8.2.13 (and 2.2.2.2. 
through 2.2.2.9.) are listed as being a 
Priority. They are also listed as being 
Optional. 

Some requirements are listed as being 
desired, but also as being optional. For 

Pages 40 - 41 
// Section 8.2.2 
– 8.2.13. 

and 

Pages 10 - 11 
// 2.2.2.2 – 
2.2.2.9. 

Requirements in the appendices tables encompass both 
priority and supporting requirements for each contract 
element.  Supporting requirements are NOT optional – 
supporting requirements are required.  Only desired 
requirements are considered “optional”.  For example, 8.2.2 
through 8.2.13 are listed as priority requirements, but they are 
also included in the full list of requirements in appendix A.  
The only optional requirements in this section are titled 
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example: 8.4.1.1. – 8.4.1.4 are listed as 
Desired. They are also listed as being 
Optional. 

 

 

Page 41 // 
Sections 8.4.1.1. 
– 8.4.1.4 

 

 

Page 61-62 //  

Sections 
18.9.10.1. – 18. 
9.10.6 

“desired.”  For example, the only desired, or optional, 
requirements for Section 8 and Appendix A are requirements 
8.71 through 8.74 as well as 8.4.1.1 through 8.4.1.4.   
Optional and desired are used interchangeably to refer to 
requirements that may be of interest to NV-HIE overtime.  
 
 

48.  Identical items are listed under Approach 
to Optional Requirements such as:  
18.9.10.1 through 18.9.10.6. are also listed 
under the Core HIE Solution. 

 

Sections 
18.9.10.1. – 18. 
9.10.6 

18.9.10.1 through 18.9.10.6 are associated with the Core HIE 
Solution contract element.  For example, the desired 
requirements associated with the HIE Core Solution are 
Appendix A requirements 8.71 through 8.74 as well as 8.4.1.1 
through 8.4.1. 

49.  Are requirements listed as being a Priority 
or a High-Level Requirement to be 
considered part of the 8 key 
capabilities/requirements (such as 
Approach to Core HIE Solution)? 

  

Sections 8.0 
through 15.0 

and 

Page 61-62 //  

Sections 
18.9.10.1. – 18. 
9.10.6 

All 8 contract elements have priority requirements associated 
with them.  The 8 contract elements are HIE fundamental to 
the HIE solution and services.  A breakdown of 
requirements for each of these contract elements is included 
in sections 8.0 through 15.0.  To provide a greater 
understanding of the detailed requirements, certain 
requirements were flagged as priorities. 

50.  Could NV-HIE more clearly define what 
they are expecting in the Approach to 
Optional Requirements, especially if a 
capability/requirement is listed twice? 

Sections 8.0 
through 15.0 

and 

Page 61-62 //  

Sections 

Optional requirements are those functions, features, and 
services that are not required at this time, but may be 
requested by NV-HIE in the future.  This allows the 
Contractor to describe other functions, features, and services 
associated with the HIE that are not required. 
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18.9.10.1. 

51.  Are requirements listed as being Desired 
to be considered part of the Approach to 
Optional Requirements or should they be 
listed under the 8 key 
capabilities/requirements? 

Sections 8.0 
through 15.0 

and 

Page 61-62 //  

Sections 
18.9.10.1. – 18. 
9.10.6 

Requirements listed as desired should be addressed as part of 
the Approach to Optional Requirements.  Also, see response 
to #27. 

52.  For a more uniform response across all 
vendors, could NV-HIE indicate the best 
designation and section of the RFP 
response to place and discuss the 
following (in particular): 

 EHR for Physician Practices and EHR 
for Provider Practices  

 Analytic Services and Business 
Intelligence Analytics  

 Clinical Decisions Support Services  

 Patient Portal and Patient Portal 
Personal Health Records (PHR) 

 Specialist Portal Services 

Sections 8.0 
through 15.0 

and 

Page 61-62 //  

Sections 
18.9.10.1. – 18. 
9.10.6 

Contractors shall include these items in the proposal section 
“Approach to Optional Requirements.” 

53.  May the format of the appendices for RFP 
responses be modified to add a column or 
row to provide supplemental information? 

 

Appendices A 
– H and L 

In order to ensure consistent evaluation, these tables cannot 
be changed. 

54.  May vendors add additional pages to better 
describe their approach, services, or 
products? 

Appendices A 
– H and L 

The approach to scope of work allows for 120 pages.  The 
contractor shall demonstrate their approach, services, and 
products within this page limit.  Responses to the tables do 
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not count towards this page limit. 

 


